
 
 
 
NO WORK SESSION  
1. Call Meeting of City Council Work Session to Order 

 
2. Approve Agenda 

2.1  County Road 34 Speed Limit 
2.2   City Attorney Items 
      a)  Administrative Enforcement of City Code 
      b)  Nuisances Abatement Procedures 
      c)  Home Occupations 

 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1. Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Approve Agenda 

2.1 Approve minutes of January 8, 2018 
 
3. Adjournment 

 
    
  CITY COUNCIL 
1. Call Meeting of City Council to Order 
 
2. Approve Agenda 

 
3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment  

(Individuals may address the City Council about any non-agenda item of concern.  Speakers must state their name, address, and limit their remarks to three minutes.  The City Council will not take official action on 
these items, but may refer the matter to staff for a future report or direct that the matter be scheduled for a future meeting agenda.) 
 
3.1 Senator Scott Jensen, District 47 
3.2 Steve Zumberge, Fire Chief – 2017 Annual Report 
 

4. Consent Agenda  
(NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: All those items listed as part of the Consent Agenda will be approved by a single motion, unless a request to discuss one of those items is made prior to that time.  Anyone present at the 
meeting may request an item to be removed from the consent agenda.  Please inform the Council when they approve the agenda for this meeting.)      

4.1  Approve minutes of January 8, 2018 meeting 
4.2  Approve payment of claims 
4.3  Church of the Ascension Knights of Columbus Fish Fry – Street Closure Request 
4.4  Approve resignation of Fire Fighter Mark Stender 
4.5  Approve resignation of Fire Fighter Pete Luskey 
4.6  Approve hiring Jamie Schlechter to the Fire Department Rescue Reserves 

 
5.      Public Hearings 
   5.1   700 Railroad Street CUP Revocation – hearing continuation    
 
6.    Old Business 

6.1   U.S. Highway 212 Underpass Project Preliminary Design Update  
  6.2   Resolution 2018-02, 700 Railroad Street CUP Revocation 
 

7.      New Business 
  7.1   Carver County SHIP Memorandum of Understanding  
  7.2  Ordinance No. 298, Pertaining to Towers and Antennas  
  7.3  Resolution 2018-05, Amending the 2008 Comprehensive Plan – Relating to Independent School District 108 
  7.4   Resolution 2018-06, Support of Funding for Trunk Highway 5 through Corridors of Commerce Program 
  7.5   Resolution 2018-07, Support of Funding for U.S. Highway 212 through Corridors of Commerce Program 
   

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
January 22, 2018 – 6:00 p.m.  

Work Session; followed by EDA / City Council Meetings 
 



8.  Council Member & Mayor Reports 
 
9.   Adjournment 
 
The following informational items have been included in the Council packet for informational purposes, council review and 
discussion.  No action is required by the City Council:  Carver County Sheriff’s Office December Report. 
 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS / EVENTS 
February 6  Planning Commission – 6:00 p.m. 
February 12  City Council – 6:00 p.m.  
February 14  Economic Development Commission – 6:00 p.m. 
February 20  Parks and Rec. Commission – 5:30 p.m. 
February 22  Senior Advisory Committee – 9:00 a.m. 
February 26  Work Session, EDA, City Council – 6:00 p.m. 
March 14  Joint Meeting – City Council, EDC, Planning Commission, and Chamber of Commerce Board – 6:30 p.m. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Steven Helget, City Administrator 
 
DATE:    January 22, 2018 

SUBJECT:   Work Session 
======================================================================== 
 
County Road 34 Speed Limit 
 
At the January 8th City Council meeting, Council Member Heher questioned how and who 
sets the speed limit for County Roads located within the city.  I contacted Carver County 
Public Works and they stated, upon the Council approving a resolution for such, they’d take it 
to the County Board to request MnDOT conduct a speed evaluation.  MnDOT measures the 
speed using actual 85th percentile operating speed which means no more than 15% of drivers 
are exceeding that speed, and the speed limit is often set 4 to 8 miles below that speed.  
More information is available at http://www.dot.state.mn.us/speed/index.html 
 
 
Administrative Enforcement of City Code 
 
As prepared by Jay Squires, City Attorney, enclosed are three draft ordinances for Council 
discussion and consideration. The first one changes the title of a section in the Zoning Code 
to eliminate the reference to enforcement. The second adds a separate section to the Zoning 
Code concerning enforcement specifically. Lastly, the third adds a comprehensive 
administrative enforcement scheme that applies to all city code violations, and has specific 
provisions that are unique to land use violations.  Jay Squires will be present to review more 
in depth. 
 
 
Nuisances Abatement Procedures 
 
Jay Squires, City Attorney, will provide a general overview of the nuisance abatement 
procedures.  Enclosed is the pertinent section of the City Code pertaining to this discussion.   
 
 
 
 

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/speed/index.html


Page 2 
January 22, 2018 
 
 
Home Occupations 
 
Proposed is to review and discuss the City Code pertaining Home Occupations.  Enclosed is 
the section of the Zoning Code pertaining to Home Occupations.  According to the Zoning 
Code, the definition of a Home Occupation is “any occupation or profession carried on by 
members of the immediate family residing on the premises”.  Proposed is to discuss some 
properties that appear to not be in compliance with the Code. 
 
 
 
 































 
 

 
Attendees:  Carol Lagergren, Dick Stolz, Craig Heher, Mike McPadden, Charlie Storms 
City Staff:  City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Kelly Hayes, Public Services Director Tony Voigt 
Others:  Matthew Arnst 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1. Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
Meeting was called to order by President Carol Lagergren at 6:02pm. 

 

2. Approve Agenda 
Motion:  MM/CH to approve the agenda as printed.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 

2.1 Resolution 1801, Nomination and Appointment of Officers 
Motion:  MM/DS to approve Resolution 1801, a resolution nominating and electing officers of the Economic Development 
Authority for the City of Norwood Young America.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 

2.2 Approve minutes of December 27, 2017 
Motion:  DS/CS to approve the minutes of December 27, 2017.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

3. New Business 
Vickerman Company (aka Par Real Estate, LLC) would like to purchase Lot 3, Block 1 and Lots 4 and 5, Block 2 of the 
Tacoma West Industrial Park.  A Public Hearing is required to establish this TIF District. 

3.1 Resolution 1802, Requesting the City Council Call for a Public Hearing for Establishment of TIF District No. 3-6 
Motion:  DS/Cs to approve Resolution 1802 requesting the City Council of the City of Norwood Young America call for a 
public hearing on a modification to the redevelopment plan for the Tacoma west industrial park redevelopment project, 
the establishment of tax increment financing district no. 3-6, the adoption of a tax increment financing plan therefor, 
and a proposed business subsidy.  Vote 5- 0.  Motion carried. 

 
  3.2   Resolution 1803, Calling for a Public Hearing Regarding Land Conveyance and Associated Business Subsidy  
           to Par Real Estate, LLC.   

Motion:  MM/CH to approve Resoltuion 1803, a resolution calling a public hearing regarding land conveyance and associated 
business subsidy to Par Real Estate, LLC.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 
4. Adjournment 

Motion:  DS/CH to adjourn at 6:11pm.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
        ____________________________________________ 
        Richard Stolz, Vice President  
 
__________________________________________ 
Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 
 
 

EDA MINUTES 
January 8, 2018 – 6:00 p.m.  

 



 
 

Attendees:  Carol Lagergren, Craig Heher, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz, Charlie Storms 
City Staff:  City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Kelly Hayes, Public Services Director Tony Voigt 
Others:  Matthew Arnst 
    
1. Call Meeting of City Council to Order 

Meeting was called to order by Mayor Lagergren at 6:12pm. 
 
2. Approve Agenda 
Motion:  MM/CH to approve the agenda.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 
3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment  

Deputy Matt Arnst introduced himself; he is the new daytime officer.  He is originally from Cologne and graduated from 
Central High.  He lives with his wife in the Preserve. 
 

4. Consent Agenda  
4.1 Approve minutes of December 27, 2017 meeting 
4.2 Approve payment of claims 

Motion:  MM/CH to approve the consent agenda.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 
5. Public Hearings 

5.1   700 Railroad Street CUP Revocation - no public comment.  
Helget met with owner, Greg Brakefield.  Greg was unable to attend due to a personal reason.   City Attorney Jay 
Squires suggested setting a date to continue the hearing on a different date. 

Motion:  CH/MM to continue the public hearing on January 22, 2018.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried.  
 
5.2      Ordinance No. 297, Establishing Senior Advisory Committee – no public comment.  

Motion:  DS/MM to close the public hearing.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
   
6. Old Business 

6.1 Resolution 2018-02, 700 Railroad Street CUP Revocation 
Motion:  CH/MM to table the resolution to January 22, 2018.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 
7.   New Business 

7.1    Resolution 2018-01, Organization of the City of Norwood Young America 
Changes:  Remove Mike McPadden and replace with Dick Stolz from Highway 212 Southwest Corridor 
Transportation Coalition.  Section 32, Subdivision 2 add Planning Commission Representative Mike Eggers. 

Motion:  CH/MM to approve Resolution 2018-01, a resolution relating to the Organization of the City of Norwood Young 
America with said changes.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 

7.2    Ordinance No. 297, Establishing Senior Advisory Committee  
All commissions of the City are located in Chapter 2 of the City Code, except for the Senior Advisory; this 
ordinance will add the commission to the code.  It was suggested to stay consistent and to establish as a 
commission. 

Motion:  DS/MM to approve Ordinance No. 297 establishing the Senior Advisory Commission.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
Motion:  CH/MM to publish a summary of Ordinance 297.  Vote 5 - 0.    Motion carried. 

 
7.3    Resolution 2018-03, Calling for Public Hearing for Establishment of TIF District No. 3-6 

Motion:  CS/CH to approve Resolution 2018-03, a resolution calling for a public hearing on the proposed 
modification of the redevelopment plan for the Tacoma West Industrial Park redevelopment project, the proposed 
establishment of tax increment financing district no. 3-6, and the proposed adoption of a tax increment financing 
plan therefor. 

  
  7.4    Resolution 2018-04, Calling for a Public Hearing to Vacate Drainage and Utility Easements 

Vickerman is looking at replotting lots.  There are easements that would need to be vacated.  
Motion:  DS/MM to approve Resolution 2018-04 calling for a public hearing to vacate drainage and utility easements on 
February 12, 2018, at 6:00pm.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
January 8, 2018 – 6:00 p.m.  

City Council Meeting 
 



 
7.5    South Park Warming House Replacement Project 

The school approached the City to see if they could build a new warming house as a school project.  The City would 
pay for the supplies. 

Motion:  CH/MM to approve construction of a new warming house at South Park at a cost not to exceed $10,000.  Vote 5 – 0.  
Motion carried. 
Motion:  MM/CH to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Norwood Young America and 
Independent School District No. 108.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 

7.6    Accept Employee Resignation 
Motion:  DS/CS to approve the resignation of Chris Niesen as of January 12, 2018.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
Motion:  CH/MM to approve posting for a Public Service Technician.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried.  

 
8. Council Member & Mayor Reports 
CH – Planning commission discussed reviewing towers and antennas.  Will be brought to the City Council in the future.  Have 

two openings on commission. 
MM – EDC will have a joint meeting this Wednesday with Chamber to discuss main streets. 
DS – none 
CS – none 
CL – Steve Helget received his yearly review.   
 
Updates:  At the Truth and Taxation meeting there was a question about a couple of properties that the taxes were going 

down but the evaluation was going up.  This was an error; both the evaluation and taxes were increasing.  There was 
also a question at this time from a resident that had a 30% tax increase.  Steve contacted the county and the increase 
was due to the property value increase from recent home sales. 

 
Resident had concerns about the speed on Tacoma being 40 mph.  Steve Helget is going to contact the county to find 
out who/how it is created. 

 
9.  Adjournment 
Motion:  MM/CH to adjourn at 6:50pm.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
 
 
___________________________________________    ___________________________________________ 
Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer    Richard Stolz, Acting Mayor 
 
 
 

















 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 

FROM: Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 

DATE: January 22, 2018 

RE:   Fire Department Resignation – Mark Stender 
 
 

On December 11, 2017, Mark Stender submitted his resignation from the NYA Fire Department to 
Chief Zumberge.  Mark has been with the Fire Department for 22 years.  His official last day is February 
1, 2018. 
 
We thank Mark for his 22 years on the Norwood Young America Fire Department and we wish him the 
best. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
 
Motion to accept the resignation of Fire Fighter Mark Stender as of February 1, 2018. 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 

FROM: Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 

DATE: January 22, 2018 

RE:   Fire Department Resignation – Pete Luskey 
 
 

On January 4, 2018, Chief Zumberge had received a letter of resignation from Pete Luskey.  Pete was a 
fire fighter for the Norwood Young America Fire Department since March 1999.  
 
We thank Pete for his 18+ years on the Norwood Young America Fire Department and we wish him the 
best. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
 
Motion to accept the resignation of Fire Fighter Pete Luskey as of August 1, 2017. 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 

FROM: Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 

DATE: January 22, 2018 

RE:   Fire Department Hiring – Jamie Schlechter 
 
 

On January 15, 2018, the Fire Department Officers interviewed Jamie Schlechter.  Jamie is a member of 
the Plato Fire Department and is the owner of 180 Collision.  He would be joining the Rescue Reserve as 
a day time Firefighter / First Responder contingent on the results of a background check. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to accept the hiring of Jamie Schlechter as a Rescue Reserve Firefighter/First Responder 
contingent on the results of the background check. 
 
 







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Steven Helget, City Administrator 
 
DATE:    January 22, 2018 

SUBJECT:   U.S. Highway 212 Underpass Project Preliminary Design Update 
======================================================================== 
 
Kevin Jullie, SRF Consulting Group, will be present to provide an update on their progress in 
completing the preliminary design for construction of the Highway 212 underpass.  Diane 
Langenbach, MnDOT, will also be in attendance. 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
No action required. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Steven Helget, City Administrator 
 
DATE:    January 22, 2018 

SUBJECT:   Carver County SHIP Memorandum of Understanding 
======================================================================== 
 
On behalf of the City of Norwood Young America, Carver County Health & Human Services 
applied to the MN Department of Health for a Statewide Health Improvement Partnership 
(SHIP) grant.  The purpose of the grant was to obtain financial assistance to extend water 
service from Reform St. to the community gardens located north of the Oak Grove building.  
Currently garden users have to connect a garden hose to a faucet located on the west side of 
the Oak Grove building and run the hose across the parking lot road to the gardens.  
Proposed is to install a farm hydrant adjacent to the gardens.   
 
Carver County was awarded $4,607 for extending water service to the community gardens 
and the installation of the farm hydrant.  The City’s local match is the installation of a water 
meter ($350) or equivalent in cost.  The project needs to be completed in time for the next 
garden growing season which is by the end of May 2018. 
 
Enclosed is a Memorandum of Understanding between the City and Carver County. 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Motion to approve the Carver County SHIP Memorandum of Understanding. 



Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
Members of the City Council 
Administrator Helget 

 
From:  Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner 

Date: January 22, 2018 

Re: Ordinance Amending Chapter 12 of the City Code by Amending Sections 1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(2) 
and 1230.03, Subd. 4(D), and by Adding Section 1270 Pertaining to Towers and Antennae 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
The Planning Commission has been discussing code standards pertaining to towers and antennae. The 
discussion was prompted by an inquiry regarding the location of telecommunications towers as a principal use 
of industrial zoned property adjacent to Highway 212. 

 

The PC found existing standards were problematic in that: 
 

 If taken literally any antennas, satellite dishes, communication or radio towers in the TA or I-2 districts 
require issuance of a CUP. There is no distinction between personal antennae or satellite dishes and 
those operated for mass communication purposes. 

 

 There is no allowance for amateur radio towers in residential areas, a fact inconsistent with federal 
regulations. 

 
The Commission studied the issue and developed proposed language. The proposed Ordinance removes 
standards contained in Sections 1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(2) pertaining to conditional use standards for all antennae 
and towers and an allowance for towers as a conditional use in the Transitional Ag District. The proposed 
Ordinance creates a new, stand-alone section within the code pertaining specifically to towers and antennae. 
Following is an overview of proposed standards: 

 
(1) A statement of purpose and intent. 

 

(2) Definitions. 
 

(3) Exempt activities, including but not limited to, (a) household antenna and satellite dishes, (b) 
adjustment, repair, or replacement of existing antenna or antenna elements, (c) placement of 
additional antenna on existing towers provided the overall height of the structure was not increased, 
(d) antenna and structures used by the City for public purposes, (e) antenna on water towers or the 
sides of roof of existing structures, (f) emergency repairs, (g) transmitters needed for emergency 
operations. 

 
(4) Where telecommunications facilities could be placed: (a) Towers over 20 feet in height supporting 
amateur radio operations would be allowed in side or rear yards in residential districts under CUP. 
(b) Towers, antenna, and support facilities would be allowed in industrial districts under CUP and 
provided they industrial parcel did not abut Highway 212. 



Page 2 of 2  

(5) Performance standards: (a) Maximum height varied by nature of use. Towers, antenna, and 
related equipment attached to existing structures not to exceed 20 feet in height. Towers supporting 
amateur radio operations are not to exceed seventy feet in height. All other towers not to exceed 175 
feet in height. (b) Setbacks: If attached to an existing structure setback equal to that portion of the 
tower height above secure attachment. If freestanding, equal to the height of the tower plus ten feet, 
except if located next to a residential zone, then height of the tower plus 100 feet. (c) Colocation is 
required. (d) Several design standards for structures and towers were reviewed. 

 
(6) Miscellaneous standards relating to abandoned towers, interference, and radiation. 

 
The Commission notes existing towers located near Young America and Braunworth Lakes are currently 
legal non-conforming uses in the R-2 District and will continue at that status. 

 

The PC held a public hearing on the draft ordinance on January 4
th
. The Planning Commission unanimously 

approved a motion recommending the Council approve the draft language. 

 
 

ACTION 
Consideration of adoption of Ordinance No. 298. If approved, authorization of summary publication. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

 Proposed Ordinance No. 298 

 Summary publication of Ordinance No. 298 

 Excerpt of Planning Commission minutes 



1 | P a g e  

CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG AMERICA 
ORDINANCE NO. 298 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12 OF THE CITY CODE BY 
AMENDING SECTIONS 1210.06, SUBD 3(B)(2) AND 1230.03, SUBD 4(D), 

AND BY ADDING SECTION 1270 PERTAINING TO TOWERS AND 
ANTENNAE 

 
I. THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG 

AMERICA, MINNESOTA HEREBY ORDAINS: 
 

II. SECTION 1210.06, SUBD. 3(B)(2) OF THE NORWOOD YOUNG 
AMERICA CITY CODE IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS. 

 
2. Reserved. Antennas, Satellite Dishes, Communication and Amateur Radio Towers. 

 

a. In all residential districts, only one of the following are permitted per lot: 
i. Satellite dish 
ii. Amateur radio tower 
iii. Ground-mounted vertical antenna 

b. A ground-mounted satellite dish shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height 
above the ground level. 

c. No ground-mounted satellite dish, amateur radio tower, or ground-mounted 
vertical antenna shall be located within the required front yard setback or side 
yard setback. 

d. Ground-mounted satellite dish, amateur radio tower, or ground-mounted 
vertical antennas shall be set back from all adjoining lots a distance equivalent 
to the height of the dish, tower, or antenna. If a portion of the tower or antenna 
is collapsible or securely fastened to a building, only the portion which can fall 
will be used to determine the setback from the property lines. Location shall 
not adversely obstruct views form adjacent property. 

e. A building permit shall be required for the installation of any satellite dish, 
amateur tower, or ground-cover mounted vertical antenna. Building permit 
applications shall require the submission of a site plan and structural 
components. 

f. Each satellite dish, amateur radio tower, and ground-mounted vertical antenna 
shall be grounded to protect against natural lightning strikes and be designed 
and installed in conformance with the National Electrical Code. 

 
III. CHAPTER 1230.03, SUBD 4(D) PERTAINING TO CONDITIONAL USES 

IN THE T/A TRANSITIONAL AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT SHALL BE 
AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
D. Reserved. Antennas, satellite dishes, communication and radio towers; 



2 | P a g e  

IV. CHAPTER 12 OF THE CITY CODE SHALL BE AMENDED BY ADDING 
SECTION 1270 AS ILLUSTRATED IN EXHIBIT A, ATTACHED 
HERETO. 

 
V. EFFECTIVE DATE: THIS ORDINANCE IS EFFECTIVE UPON ITS 

ADOPTION AND PUBLICATION AS PRESCRIBED BY LAW. 

 
Adopted by the City of Norwood Young America on this 22nd day of January, 2018. 

 
 
 

 Dick Stolz, Acting Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 

Kelly Hayes, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  

EXHIBIT A 

Section 1270 – Antennas and Towers 
 

1270.01. Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this section is to manage the placement, 
construction, and modification of telecommunication towers, antennas, and related facilities in 
order to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public while accommodating the 
communications needs of the public, residents, and businesses. 

 
1270.02 Definitions. 

 
Antenna: Any device which is designed to transmit or receive any electromagnetic, 
microwave, radio, television, or other frequency energy waves including but not limited to 
directional and omni-directional antennae such as microwave dishes, satellite dishes and 
whip antennae. 

 
Antenna support structure: A building, water tower, or other structure, other than a 
telecommunications tower, which can be used for location of telecommunications facilities. 

 
Applicant: A person who applies for a permit to develop, construct, build modify or erect a 
tower or antenna under this section. 

 
Application: The process by which the owner of a plot of land within the city or other 
person submits a request to develop, construct, build, modify or erect a tower or antenna 
upon that land. 

 
Commercial wireless telecommunication services: Licensed commercial wireless 
telecommunication services including cellular, personal communication services (PCS), 
specialized mobilized radio (SMR), enhanced specialized mobilized radio (ESMR), paging 
and television similar services that are marketed to the general public. 

 
Telecommunications facilities: Cables, wires, lines, wave guides, antennas or any other 
equipment or facilities associated with the transmission or reception of telecommunications 
located or installed on or adjacent to a tower or antenna support structure. 

Tower: Any ground or roof mounted pole, spire, structure or combination thereof exceeding 
20 feet in height including supporting lines, cables, wires, braces and masts intended 
primarily for the purpose of mounting an antenna or similar apparatus above grade. 

 
Wireless Service Provider: A direct provider of wireless services to end users. 

 
 

1270.03 Exemptions. The following are exempt from permit requirements contained in this 
Section. 



4 | P a g e  

A. Household television antennas extending less than 20 feet above the highest point of the 
roof of a residential structure. 

B. Satellite dish receiving antennas two meters or less in diameter. 
C. Adjustment, repair, or replacement of an antenna or the elements of an antenna, provided 

that such work does not constitute an increase in the height of the tower structure. 
D. Placement of additional antennas on existing towers provided that such work does not 

constitute an increase in the height of the tower structure. 
E. Antennas and antenna support structures used by the City for City purposes. 
F. Antennas mounted on water towers or on the sides or roof of existing structures. 
G. Antennas placed in public rights-of-way which are owned and operated by a wireless 

service provider, providing the antenna is placed on an existing structure. 
H. Emergency or routine repairs, reconstruction, or routine maintenance of previously 

approved facilities, or replacement of transmitters, antennas, or other components or 
previously approved facilities which do not create a significant change in visual impact or 
an increase in radio frequency emission levels, and provided that such work does not 
constitute a clear safety hazard. 

I. Two-way communication transmitters used on a temporary basis by a “911” emergency 
services, including fire, police and emergency aid or ambulance service. 

 
 

1270.04 Prohibited Towers. Towers, antenna, and support facilities not specifically provided 
for herein shall be prohibited. 

 
 

1270.04 Zoning District Standards. 
 

A. Towers over twenty feet in height specifically and solely designed to support amateur 
radio operations and antenna are allowed in the side or rear yards in residential districts 
provided a conditional use permit is issued. 

B. Telecommunications towers, antennas, and support facilities are allowed in industrial 
zoning districts provided a conditional use permit is issued and the subject parcel does 
not abut T.H. 212. 

 
 

1270.05 Performance and Design Standards. 
 

A. Tower or Antenna Height: 
1. Antennas, towers, and related equipment attached to existing structures shall not be 

more than ten (10) feet in height above the highest point of the existing structure. 
2. Antennas, towers, and related equipment supporting amateur radio operations shall 

not exceed seventy (70) feet in height. 
3. All other towers shall not exceed 175 feet in height. 

 
B. Setbacks. 

1. Setback requirements for towers shall be measured from the base of the tower to the 
property line of the parcel on which it is located. 



5 | P a g e  

2. Amateur radio towers when not rigidly attached to a building shall be setback from all 
property lines the minimum of a distance equal to the height of the antenna and tower. 
Setbacks for amateur radio towers rigidly attached to a building may be reduced by an 
amount that is equal to the distance from the point of attachment to the ground. 

3. All other towers shall have a minimum setback from any property line equal to the 
height of the tower plus 10 feet, except that towers located adjacent to a residential 
zone shall have a setback equaling the height of the tower plus 100 feet. 

 
C. Co-location required. 

1. Any proposed tower over sixty (60) feet in height shall be designed for co-location of 
at least one additional antenna. 

2. Any proposed tower over one hundred (100) feet in height shall be designed for co- 
location of at least two (2) additional antennas. 

 
D. Design Standards. 

1. Towers shall be designed and certified by a licensed and qualified professional 
engineer to conform to the latest structural standards and all requirements of the State 
Building Code, the Electronics Industry Association, and the National Electric Code. 

2. Towers shall be designed to ensure that visual intrusiveness and impacts on nearby 
properties are mitigated to the greatest extent possible. 

3. Every tower affixed to the ground shall be protected to discourage climbing of the 
tower by unauthorized persons. 

4. Towers may not be artificially lit except as required by the Federal Aviation 
Administration. 

5. Towers not requiring Federal Aviation Administration painting or marking must have 
durable exterior finishes and shall be light blue, gray, or other similar color which 
minimizes visibility 

6. Towers shall be designed to allow for future rearrangement of equipment upon the 
structure, and to accept attachments mounted at varying heights. 

7. The use of any portion of a tower or antenna for signs other than warning, 
identification, emergency contact information, or equipment information is 
prohibited. 

8. Freestanding towers must be self-supporting without the use of wires, cables, beams, 
or other means. The suggested design is a monopole configuration or open framework 
which collapses on itself in the event of structural damage. 

9. To prevent unauthorized entry, towers shall be provided with security fencing as 
needed or when required by the City. 

10. Transmitting, receiving, and switching equipment shall be housed within an existing 
structure whenever possible. If a new equipment building is necessary for 
transmitting, receiving, and switching equipment, it shall meet setback requirement 
contained in the underlying zoning classification and be designed, constructed, and 
screened to blend in to the surrounding environment and adjacent land uses. 

11. Towers and antennas should be located in areas that provide natural or existing 
structural screening for off-site views of the facility when feasible. Existing on-site 
vegetation that provides screening shall be preserved to the extent possible. 
Vegetative screening at the perimeter of the tower is encouraged. 



6 | P a g e  

 
 

1270.06 Abandoned or Unused Towers. Abandoned or unused towers or antennas shall be 
removed within twelve (12) months of the cessation of operations at the site. 

 
 

1270.07 Interference. No new or existing tower, antenna, or related equipment shall interfere 
with public safety communications. Before the introduction of a new service or a change in 
existing services, equipment providers shall notify the City at least ten (10) calendar days in 
advance of such changes and allow the City to monitor interference levels during the testing 
process. 

 
 

1270.08 Radiation. Towers, antennas, and related equipment placed within the City shall be 
subject to State and Federal regulations, as amended. The cost of verification of compliance shall 
be borne by the owner and operator of the communications facilities and equipment. 



 

6. Public Hearings. 
 

Ordinance Amending Chapter 12 of the City Code by Amending Sections 1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(2) and 
1230.03, Subd. 4(D), and by Adding Section 1270 Pertaining to Towers and Antennae. 

 

Chairperson Heher introduced the agenda topic and explained the public hearing process. Heher opened 
the public hearing at 6:11 p.m. 

 
Strack noted the Planning Commission reviewed draft tower and antenna standards at several previous 
meetings. The Commission called for a public hearing at the December meeting. The proposed tower 
and antennae standards include: 

 
(1) A statement of purpose and intent. 

 
(2) Definitions. 

 
(3) Exempt activities, including but not limited to, (a) household antenna and satellite dishes, (b) 
adjustment, repair, or replacement of existing antenna or antenna elements, (c) placement of additional 
antenna on existing towers provided the overall height of the structure was not increased, (d) antenna 
and structures used by the City for public purposes, (e) antenna on water towers or the sides of roof of 
existing structures, (f) emergency repairs, and (g) transmitters needed for emergency operations. 

 
(4) Where telecommunications facilities could be placed: (a) Towers over 20 feet in height supporting 
amateur radio operations would be allowed in side or rear yards in residential districts under CUP. (b) 
Towers, antenna, and support facilities would be allowed in industrial districts under CUP and provided 
they industrial parcel did not abut Highway 212. 

 
(5) Performance standards: (a) Maximum height vary by nature of use. Towers, antenna, and related 
equipment attached to existing structures not to exceed 20 feet in height. Towers supporting amateur 
radio operations are not to exceed seventy feet in height. All other towers not to exceed 175 feet in 
height. (b) Setbacks: If attached to an existing structure setback equal to that portion of the tower height 
above secure attachment. If freestanding, equal to the height of the tower plus ten feet, except if located 
next to a residential zone, then height of the tower plus 100 feet. (c) Colocation is required. (d) Several 
design standards for structures and towers were reviewed. 

 
(6) Miscellaneous standards relating to abandoned towers, interference, and radiation. 

 
Motion – Lagergren to close the public hearing. Second by Grundahl. With all in favor the hearing was 
closed at 6:17 p.m. 

 
7. Old Business. 

 
Ordinance Amending Chapter 12 of the City Code by Amending Sections 1210.06, Subd. 3(B)(2) and 1230.03, 
Subd. 4(D), and by Adding Section 1270 Pertaining to Towers and Antennae. 

 

Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 

Strack noted the Planning Commission initiated review of tower and antenna standards after noting a 
discrepancy in the existing code which, if interpreted literally, would appear to require conditional use 
permits for every tower and antenna in the community regardless of size, location, or zoning 
classification. 



 

Strack noted at this time towers are conditional uses in the transitional agricultural district and the 
industrial districts. She noted the proposed ordinance also allows for amateur radio towers as required 
under FCC rules. 

 
Grundahl inquired as to how the tower ordinance proposed related to previous discussion regarding 
small cellular wireless technology. Strack noted “Gen 5” wireless relied less on large tower structures in 
favor of smaller devices located in close proximity to one another. Small cell wireless antenna were 
typically placed on power poles and occasionally stop lights and similar apparatus. She noted the City 
of Norwood Young America did not run its own electric utility which means wireless carriers will most 
likely need to work with Xcel Energy to locate antenna on existing poles. In the event backhaul 
facilities or new self-serving poles were envisions a permit under the City’s existing right-of-way 
ordinance would be required. 

 
Lagergren clarified where future towers in the industrial district could be located. Strack noted towers 
could not be placed on industrial lots abutting Highway 212. They could be located in the vicinity of the 
Tacoma West industrial area. 

 
Helget expressed concern with the allowable height of a tower affixed to a roof. The Commission 
considered Helget’s concern and reached consensus to amend the draft language as suggested by Eggers. 
Eggers’s suggestion was to limit the maximum height of a tower affixed to a structure to ten (10) feet 
above the highest point of the roof. 

 
Motion – Lagergren to recommend approval of the proposed Ordinance with the correction regarding 
maximum height of a roof antenna. Second by Eggers. With all in favor the motion was approved. 











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Steven Helget, City Administrator 
 
DATE:    January 22, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution 2018-07, Support of Funding for Trunk Highway 5 through Corridors 

of Commerce Program 
======================================================================== 
 
The Minnesota Transportation Alliance is requesting the City approve a resolution supporting 
funding for the Trunk Highway 5 through the Corridors of Commerce Program.  Enclosed is 
Resolution 2018-06 for the Council’s consideration. 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 

Motion to approve Resolution 2018- 06, A Resolution in Support of Funding for 
Trunk Highway 5 Through Corridors of Commerce Program 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Steven Helget, City Administrator 
 
DATE:    January 22, 2018 

SUBJECT:   Resolution 2018-07, A Resolution in Support of Funding for U.S. Highway 
212 Through the Corridor of Commerce Program 

======================================================================== 
 
The Minnesota Transportation Alliance and the Southwest Corridor Transportation Coalition 
is requesting the City approve a resolution supporting funding for the U.S. Highway 212 
through the Corridors of Commerce Program.  Enclosed is Resolution 2018-07 for the 
Council’s consideration. 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 

Motion to approve Resolution 2018- 07, A Resolution in Support of Funding for 
U.S. Highway 212 Through Corridors of Commerce Program 
 
 


























	January 22, 2018 – 6:00 p.m.
	Work Session; followed by EDA / City Council Meetings



